
One Team One Mission One Rock Hill 
 

 
  

 
  

 

Meeting of the Board of Trustees 
Monday, August 26, 2019 

6:00 p.m. – Central Office 
A G E N D A  

 
 

 I.     Call to Order – Kennedi Carpenter – Independence Elementary School    
   Approval of Agenda   (Policy BEDB) 

 (Under consent agenda, all action items will be voted on after one motion and second to approve them without   

 discussion.  If a board member wants any action item discussed or voted on separately, the board member, before the  

 agenda is approved, must ask that the action item be moved to the discussion item section.) 
  
 
      II.     Recognitions 

A. Introduction of New Administrators 
B. Recognition of Officer Tonya Bennett, SC SRO of the Year 

C. Recognition of Mrs. Robin Owens – Boardmanship Institute ~ Level 2 
D. Recognition of Mrs. Helena Miller – Boardmanship Institute ~ Level 4 
E. Welcome Back to School Board Photo 
 
 

III.    Citizen Participation  
 
     IV.    Consent Action Agenda 

A. Approval of Minutes 
1. July 22, 2019 combined work session/business meeting 

B. Approval of Personnel Recommendations (Policy BDD) 
 

  V.    Action Agenda   

 A. Approval of Policy GBED – Tobacco Free Workplace – 1st read 
 B. Approval of Policy JICG – Tobacco Use by Students – 1st read 

 C. Approval of 1st Set of Section “C” Policies – 1st read 
 *CA – Administration Goals / Priority Objectives 
 *CB – School Superintendent 
 *CBA – Qualifications of the Superintendent 
 *CBC – Superintendent Powers and Responsibilities 

 *CBD – Superintendent’s Contract 
 *CBG – Superintendent’s Professional Development 
 *CBI – Evaluation of Superintendent 
 *CC – Administrative Organization  

 *CCA – Organization Chart 
 *CCB – Line and Staff Relations 

 *CF – School Building Administration 
 *CFA – School Principals / Building Administration 

 



One Team One Mission One Rock Hill 
 

 
 *CFC – Assignment and Transfer of School Administrators 

 *CHA/CHB – Development of Administrative Rules / Board Review  
 *CH – Policy Implementation 

 *CHD – Administration in the Absence of Policy 
 *CM – School District Annual Report 
 
D.  Approval of 8% SCAGO General Obligation Debt Issuance 

 
     VI.  Communications   

VII.  Report of the Superintendent 

A. Announcements  
B. Rock Hill Symphony Presentation 

C. Nursing Services Update 
D. Summer Programs Update 
E. Graduation Coaches and Family Outreach Coordinators Update 

 
 

VIII.  Review of School Board Work Sessions – July 22 and August 12 
 
 

IX.  Other and Future Business 
 

X.  Executive Session(s) –  (Policy BEC) 
                   ~Contractual Matters – Intergovernmental Agreement, Succession Planning for Master Plan  
 

XI.  Action as required from Executive Session(s) -  (Policy BEC) 
 
 

XII.  Adjournment 
 

 



 

 

 
 
 
Memorandum 
TO: Dr. Bill Cook 
FROM: Mychal Frost 
DATE: August 21, 2019  
SUBJECT: Call to Order at August 26th School Board Meeting 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Kennedi Carpenter, a fourth grader at Independence Elementary School, will provide the “Call to 
Order” at the August 26th school board meeting. While we recognize tonight is special in that she 
gets to represent her school, tomorrow, is also a very special day for Kennedi and her twin sister 
Karrington (happy birthday). 
 
Kennedi:  

• Is a student ambassador and served as a student guide last week for Dr. Cook’s visit 
• Has previously been recognized as a Kiwanis Club of Rock Hill Terrific Kid 
• Has a been on A Honor Roll  
• Is involved with gymnastics 

 
Parents: Carl and Sharesa Carpenter  
 
Siblings in Rock Hill Schools: Her twin sister Karrington also attends Independence Elementary 
School. 
 
Principal:  Kimberly Odom  
 
Mailing Address: 
5009 Sequoia Drive 
Rock Hill, SC 29732 

Communications Department 
Telephone:  981-1008   -   Fax:  981-1094 



	

	

 
Memorandum 
TO: Dr. Bill Cook 
FROM: Mychal Frost 
DATE: August 21, 2019  
SUBJECT: Recognitions for August 26th School Board Meeting 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
A. Introduction of New Administrators 

Tonight, we officially welcome new administrators to our team. As I call your name, please come forward to 
meet the Board of Trustees: 
 

• Kimberly Grant, who has taught art at Northwestern High School since 1995, has been hired as the 
district’s Technology Instructional Specialist and support arts education. Since 2008, she has served 
as the department chair at Northwestern.  
 

• Lukas Hopper rejoins Rock Hill Schools and will serve middle and high schools as a Math 
Instructional Specialist. In the role, he will work alongside math content area teachers to improve 
teaching practices and strategies. Hopper previously taught math at Rock Hill High School before 
teaching the past year at Nation Ford High School.  
 

• Maria Linn will join the Instruction and Accountability department and serve as a Research 
Specialist. Linn comes to Rock Hill Schools after 20 years at Winthrop University. 
 

• Dr. Susan Green has been selected to be a District Literacy Coach, a role that will allow her to work 
directly with students and teachers to improve achievement in the area of literacy. She has twice 
been named teacher of the year at Waxhaw Elementary School, where she has taught and served as 
a reading interventionist since 2009. She has also taught at The College of New Rochelle and 
Fordham University.  
 

• Anastasia McRay has joined Rock Hill Schools as a District Math Coach. She joins our team after 
serving as an assistant principal in Union County (N.C.) and previously as Multi-Tiered Systems of 
Support Coordinator in Lee County School District.  
 

• Dan Blackburn, who has led the electricity program at Applied Technology Center, has been 
promoted to serve as Dean of Students. He has been in Rock Hill Schools since 2006 and replaces 
Chris Curtis who is now an assistant principal at Northwestern High School. 
 

• Aaron Clark is an assistant principal at Saluda Trail Middle School. Clark joins Rock Hill Schools after 
serving as principal at Hanson Elementary School in Hanson, Kentucky.  
 

Marketing & Communications Department 
Telephone:  981-1008  -   Fax:  981-1094 



	

	

• Kenneth Crump is an assistant principal at Rawlinson Road Middle School. He joins Rock Hill Schools 
after one year as Dean of Students at Ranson International Baccalaureate Middle School in 
Charlotte-Mecklenburg Schools. Crump replaces Marek Marshall who is now an assistant principal at 
South Pointe High School. 
 

• Amber Handy is an assistant principal at Dutchman Creek Middle School. She joins Rock Hill Schools 
after four years as an assistant principal at Vance High School in Charlotte-Mecklenburg Schools. 
Handy replaces Michael Wessinger who relocated to Texas. 
 

• Derek Johnson, who has served most recently as a district literacy coach, is now an assistant 
principal at York Road Elementary School. He has been in Rock Hill Schools since 2005 and has 
served as a special education teacher at Oakdale Elementary School and literacy teacher at 
Northside Elementary School. 
 

• Kay Runyans, who has served as lead counselor at South Pointe High School, has been promoted to 
serve as Dean of Students. She has been at South Pointe since the school opened.  
 

• Jessica Wren, who served as an interim assistant principal at Rock Hill High during the 2018-2019 
school year, will remain at RHHS in a full-time position replacing Beau Modla who is now an 
assistant principal at Dutchman Creek Middle School. 
 

• Dr. Tom Sparks, who retired from district at the end of last school year, has rejoined the district and 
will assist the board as its hearing officer. A former college and professional baseball player, Dr. 
Sparks’ education career led him to teaching and administrative positions in Tennessee and South 
Carolina, including two stints as an assistant principal at Northwestern as well as an assistant 
superintendent position in Lexington District Three and superintendent of Orangeburg Consolidated 
District Four. 

 
B. Recognition of Officer Tonya Bennett, SC SRO of the Year  

A longtime deputy from the York County Sheriff’s Office has been named the top school resource officer in 
South Carolina. Tonya Bennett was awarded the Eric Bamberg School Resource Officer of the Year for the 
state in 2019. The award is named for a late officer from the Bamberg Police Department known for his 
devotion to student and staff safety. Bennett also won top honors for the upstate region of South Carolina. 
York County Sheriff Kevin Tolson said staff and students both respect and love Bennett for her devotion to 
the school, its people and the safety of all on campus. Bennett won the awards after she was nominated by 
school staff. One letter of nomination praised her as “an exemplary individual with a commitment to law 
enforcement and more importantly to the public in which she serves.” Staff at the school wanted Bennett to 
be recognized for her “self-motivation, dependability and determination over the years. This is the second 
consecutive year a SRO working with our schools has won the state award. In 2018, former Rock Hill Police 
Department Sgt. Mike Johnson won the award as top resource officer in South Carolina. As you know, Mr. 
Johnson is now on our district staff.  

 
C. Recognition of Robin Owens (Level 2) and Helena Miller (Level 4) 

Established in 1982, the South School Boards Association Boardsmanship Institute offers a year-round 
training curriculum focused on leadership skills for board members on state and national education issues. 
Board members are recognized for reaching each of six levels. This year, I would like to recognize Mrs. Robin 
Owens for reaching Level 2. She is presented with a certificate and a silver pin. Next, I would like to 



	

	

recognize Mrs. Helena Miller. She has reached Level 4 and is presented this evening with a certificate and a 
gold pin from SCSBA.  
 

D. Welcome Back to School Board Photo 
Along with the 78 other school boards across South Carolina, I invite our board members to join me as we 
participate in the SCSBA’s Back to School “Your Voice, Your Board” campaign. Using the hashtag 
#schoolboardstrong, districts around our state are joining together to show support for public education and 
share in the excitement of the new school year. 



 

                                      

 

 

 

Combined Work Session/Business Meeting of the Board of Trustees 
Monday, July 22, 2019 

        8:30 a.m. - Central Office 

 

 

Work Session 
 

1. Call to Order and Approval of Agenda 

  The Rock Hill School District Three Board of Trustees met this date at 8:30 a.m. with members 

  present as follows:  Mildred Douglas, Brent Faulkenberry, Terry Hutchinson, Helena Miller,  

  Robin Owens, and Ann Reid.  Windy Cole participated via Skype.   

 

  Chairman Miller called the meeting to order and led in a moment of silence and the Pledge of 

  Allegiance.   

 

  Ms. Miller stated that the local news media had been notified of the agenda for this meeting, in 

  writing, on Thursday, July 18, 2019.   

 

  A motion was made by Terry Hutchinson, seconded by Brent Faulkenberry, to approve the agenda.  

  The motion was unanimously approved, 7-0.   

 

2. Work Session 

A. RHS’ Mission / Vision 

Chairman Helena Miller provided handouts of the district’s current mission, vision, and 

professional code for board members to review.  Mrs. Miller also provided a survey for board 

members to complete reflecting their thoughts on whether or not it is time to tweak the 

mission, vision, and professional code.   

 

B. Update of Goals for 2018-2019 

Superintendent Dr. Bill Cook provided a brief update on the 2018-2019 goals.  Dr. Cook 

stated a lengthier update would be provided in the fall of this year.   

 

C.  Presentation of Final Draft of Master Plan 2020-2030 

          Chief of Operations Mr. Tony Cox, Executive Director of Facilities Mr. Brian 

          Vaughan, and Chief of Finance Mrs. Terri Smith presented the final draft of “One.”, the 

          proposed Master Plan for Rock Hill Schools for 2020-2030.  This presentation highlighted 

          the main points from the complete Master Plan.  This presentation followed previous  

          presentations of the first and second drafts on June 10 and June 24, respectively, and a  

          special Board Workshop on June 20.  The final draft incorporates Board feedback from  

          those sessions.   

 

 

 



 

D.  Resolution for Bond Referendum 

          Mrs. Smith also presented for the Board’s review and consideration the following:  

 

         1. Resolution Ordering Referendum with one question;  

         2. Resolution Ordering Referendum with two questions; and,  

         3. Referendum Questions.   

 

         Mr. Cary Crantford, of Crantford Research, presented the results from his community 

       telephone survey conducted to gauge potential voter support for passing a bond referendum. 

         Mrs. Smith and Mrs. Frannie Heizer, with Burr and Forman, reviewed the Referendum Do’s 

       and Don’t’s.   

 

3.  Adjournment 

    A motion was made by Terry Hutchinson, seconded by Ann Reid, to adjourn the work session 

    and enter into a business meeting.  This motion was unanimously approved, 7-0. 

 

 

 

Business Meeting 

 
 I. Call to Order and Approval of Agenda 

Chairman Miller called the business meeting portion of the combined meeting to order.   

 

 Ms. Miller stated that the local news media had been notified of the agenda for this meeting, in 

            writing, on Thursday, July 18, 2019.   

 

A motion was made by Terry Hutchinson, seconded by Ann Reid, to approve the amended 

            agenda.  The agenda was unanimously approved, 7-0. 

   

II. Recognitions - None 

   

III. Citizen Participation - None 

 

IV. Consent Action Agenda 

On a motion by Mildred Douglas, seconded by Terry Hutchinson, the following topics on the 

consent action agenda were unanimously approved, 7-0: the minutes of the June 10 work session 

and public budget hearing; the minutes of the June 20 called work session; the minutes of the 

June 24 business meeting; and, personnel recommendations as submitted by the administration.                                                            

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              

V.  Action Agenda 

A.  Approval of Adoption of Master Plan 2020-2030 and  

B.  Approval of Resolution Ordering Bond Referendum 

After a lengthy discussion, and the Board’s expressed desire for more information and time 

to digest the information received at the work session earlier in the day, a motion was made 

by Terry Hutchinson to postpone definitely until the August 12 work session Items A. 



 

Adoption of Mater Plan 2020-2030 and B. Resolution Ordering Bond Referendum.  This 

motion was seconded by Robin Owens and was unanimously approved, 7-0. 

    

VI. Communications - None 

 

VII. Report of the Superintendent 

A.  Announcements 

Superintendent Cook made the following announcements: 

• Online student registration and enrollment for the 2019-2020 school year for new and 

returning students is open.  Current families are reminded to access the enrollment gateway 

using login information provided via e-mail.  New families can also begin the convenient 

online process by visiting our district website.  In both cases, we are pleased to offer a new 

feature this year that allows families the option to submit proof of residency documentation 

online.  We believe this option will help to improve on-site registration days at each of our 

campuses.    

• On Monday, August 19, we will welcome 17,000+ students for the 2019-2020 school year.  

Teachers will return on Monday, August 12, and kickoff the year with a two-day 

professional development conference that will end with the annual Back-to-School Pep 

Rally on August 13 at 2pm at Northwestern High School.  Teachers new to Rock Hill will 

participate in our Learning to Rock program August 4-6.  This annual event continues to 

provide a rich opportunity to our newest employees to become acclimated to our district 

and the Rock Hill community.   

• You are encouraged to visit the district’s capital building program, “Build on the Rock,”  

website – www.rock-hill.k12.sc.us/BuildOnTheRock  - for more information.  This website 

provides status updates on active and planned construction projects in the district.  On the 

page, viewers can see project descriptions, before and after photographs, and construction 

timelines. 

• The School Board will next meet on Monday, August 12 for its work session and on 

Monday, August 26 for its business meeting.  Both meetings will be streamed on our 

website and available for viewing on-demand immediately following each broadcast.  We 

invite our community to watch  meetings live on our Facebook broadcasts at 

Facebook.com/RockHillSchools.     

 

VIII. Review of School Board Work Session - None 

 

IX.     Other and Future Business 

    The board discussed other and future business. 

 

X.        Executive Session 

           A motion was made by Terry Hutchinson, seconded by Mildred Douglas, to adjourn open 

    session and enter executive session for the following: 

• Personnel Matters:  Hirings 

• Contractual Matters: Intergovernmental Agreement, Property 

 

   This motion was unanimously approved, 7-0. 

 

    A motion was made by Terry Hutchinson, seconded by Brent Faulkenberry, to adjourn 

http://www.rock-hill.k12.sc.us/BuildOnTheRock
http://www.rock-hill.k12.sc.us/BuildOnTheRock


 

    executive session and reconvene open session.  This motion was unanimously approved, 7-0. 

  

XI.    Action as Required from Executive Session 

     A motion was made by Robin Owens, seconded by Terry Hutchinson, to accept the 

     administration’s recommendations for Research Specialist.  This motion was unanimously 

     approved, 7-0. 

 

     A motion was made by Mildred Douglas, seconded by Terry Hutchinson, to accept the 

     administration’s recommendations for Secondary Mathematics Specialist.  This motion was 

     unanimously approved, 7-0. 

 

      A motion was made by Ann Reid, seconded by Terry Hutchinson, to accept the 

     administration’s recommendation for Elementary Math Coach.  This motion was unanimously 

     approved, 7-0. 

 

     A motion was made by Terry Hutchinson, seconded by Robin  Owens, to accept the 

     administration’s recommendation for Finance Manager.  This motion was unanimously  

     approved, 7-0. 

 

     A motion was made by Brent Faulkenberry, seconded by Robin Owens, to approve the  

     administration’s recommendation for Arts and Technology Instructional Specialist.  This 

     motion was unanimously approved, 7-0. 

 

     A motion was made by Robin Owens, seconded by Brent Faulkenberry, to authorize the  

     Superintendent, on behalf of the Rock Hill School District Board of Trustees, to execute the  

     purchase of property, consisting of a building located at 414 East Black Street in Rock Hill, SC  

     from the South Carolina Educational Television Commission for the amount of $8,000. 

 

XII. Adjournment 

       On a motion by Terry Hutchinson, seconded by Ann Reid the Board voted  

       unanimously, 7-0, to adjourn the meeting.   

 

 

 

 

 

  ______________________________ 

   Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPROVED:  ________________________________ 

      Chairman   

 



 

             Meeting of the Board of Trustees 

   Monday, July 22, 2019 

 
 

PERSONNEL MATTERS – July 2019 
 

The board affirmed contracts for the following certified employee(s): 

Whitney Griggs ..................... Belleview 

Rebecca M. Keatts ................ Belleview 

James Alewine ...................... Castle Heights 

Christy Funderburk ............... Dutchman Creek 

Shandra Hall ......................... Dutchman Creek 

Dozier Murray ...................... Dutchman Creek 

Alicia Young ......................... Ebenezer Avenue Montessori 

Shannon Ashong ................... Finley Road 

Rebecca Priode ..................... Finley Road 

Helen M. Braddock ............... Independence 

Anala Covington ................... Independence 

Kimberly Waltmire ............... Independence/Belleview/NS 

Bailey Lewis ......................... India Hook 

April McConneaughey .......... Mt. Holly 

Elizabeth Payton ................... Mt. Holly 

Rebecca Pennington .............. Mt. Holly 

Kimberly Pyles ..................... Northwestern 

Christen Sanders ................... Northwestern 

Valerie Dixon ........................ Oakdale 

Lorrie Stutzman .................... Old Pointe 

Marletta Webb ...................... Old Pointe 

Heather Keeley ..................... Raven 

Samantha B. Donald ............. Richmond Drive 

Sean Carson .......................... Rock Hill High 

Conrad F. Martin .................. Rock Hill High 

Pamela Graham ..................... Rosewood 

Jalavender Clowney .............. Saluda Trail 

Jacqueline Kane .................... Saluda Trail 

Kimberly Milton ................... Saluda Trail 

Langlee Morrell .................... Saluda Trail 

Erza Cowan ........................... South Pointe 

Joshua Hope .......................... South Pointe 

Melvin Wearing .................... South Pointe 

Ayende Alcala ...................... Sullivan 

Ebony Foster ......................... Sullivan 

Lauren E. Burgess ................. Sunset Park 

Lisa Galbreath  ...................... Sunset Park 

Yamuel Perez-Sanchez ......... Sunset Park/India Hook 

 

AS INFORMATION TO THE BOARD 
   

Resignations – Certified 

Joshua Hobson ........................ Dutchman Creek 

Marcus Porter ......................... Rock Hill High 

 



 

Transfers – Certified 

Michelle Preston ..................... Cherry Park 

Kathey Galbreath .................... Ebinport 

Melanie Sims .......................... Mt. Holly 

 

New Employees – Non-Certified 

Kimberly Naniot ..................... Belleview 

Carrie Missaggia ..................... Cherry Park 

Wimberly Barron .................... Ebinport 

Carolyn Farabee ..................... Ebinport 

Tilena Taylor .......................... Flex Center / Food Service 

Jennifer Brooke ...................... Independence 

Jessica Hogue ......................... Mt. Gallant 

Jarrett Neely ........................... Northwestern 

Seleah Bowles ........................ Oakdale 

Thomas Smith ......................... Old Pointe 

Larry Harrison ........................ Rosewood 

Yvonne Odom ........................ Rosewood 

Marion Scott ........................... Rosewood 

Carol Westbrook ..................... Rosewood 

Christopher Mabry ................. Saluda Trail 

Luz Arango ............................. Sullivan 

 

Resignations – Non-Certified 

Evelyn Y. Overcash ................ Ebenezer Avenue Montessori 

Jarvis Davis ............................ Northwestern 

Theresa Turner ....................... Rock Hill High 

Kristina Raab .......................... South Pointe 

Lenora Sherrill ........................ Sullivan 

 

Transfers – Non-Certified 

Rhonda McCray-Coleman ...... Old Pointe 

 



  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MONTHLY BOARD REPORT 
 

AUGUST 26, 2019 
 

PERSONNEL DEPARTMENT 
 

SUMMARY 
 
 
 
 
 



 
ROCK HILL SCHOOL DISTRICT THREE OF YORK COUNTY 

ROCK HILL, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 

 
1.  BOARD ACTION REQUIRED 
 
            CERTIFIED 

 
New Employees ............................................. (42) 

 
2.  AS INFORMATION TO THE BOARD 
 
            CERTIFIED 

 
Resignations .................................................... (13) 
 
Transfers .......................................................... (5) 

 
 

3.         NON-CERTIFIED 
 

New Employees ............................................. (18) 
 

Position Eliminated ...................................... (1) 
 

Resignations .................................................... (8) 
 

Transfers .......................................................... (2) 
 

 
4.         EMPLOYEES WORKING THROUGH SCECG 
 

Administrative/Certified Employees .... (8) 
 

Non-certified Employees ............................ (2) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



BOARD ACTION REQUIRED 

 
NEW EMPLOYEES – CERTIFIED (42) 

 
Daniel Jones Charles Applied Technology Center .5 FTE health science teacher 
Stephanie Clark Applied Technology Center .5FTE health science teacher 
Jason Gilbert Applied Technology Center Electricity teacher 
Aida Garcia Castro Cherry Park Grade three Spanish immersion teacher 
Tera Mills Dutchman Creek/Saluda Trail Guidance counselor 
Celycia Robinson Ebinport Title I academic intervention teacher 
Alissa Stripling  Ebinport Elementary academic interventionist 
Candace Connors Exceptional Student Education  Speech therapist 
Janiece Jenkins Exceptional Student Education Mental health counselor 
Kayla Pengelski Exceptional Student Education Mental health counselor 
Theodus Roach Exceptional Student Education Mental health counselor 
Jessica Wilson Exceptional Student Education Mental health counselor 
Robert Gasparello Mt. Holly Grade five teacher 
Virginia McCallister Northside Art teacher 
Margaret Buddin Northwestern Science teacher 
Shanequa Clarke Northwestern Social studies teacher 
Caroline Furiate Northwestern Art teacher 
Dara Ross Northwestern Science teacher 
Sarah B. Sandifer Northwestern English teacher 
Wayne Starkes Northwestern Physical education teacher 
Christine Steinmetz Oakdale Grade two teacher 
Cynthia Symons Oakdale Special education resource teacher 
Emily Beadle Oakdale Grade two teacher 
Hunter McDaniel Raven Academy Middle level social studies teacher 
Tyler Anderson Rawlinson Road Grade eight social studies teacher 
Jewel Reynolds Rawlinson Road Grade eight science teacher 
Jill Jenkins Richmond Drive .5 FTE Gifted and talented teacher 
Sean Cunningham Saluda Trail Grade eight science teacher 
James Daigdigan South Pointe Math teacher 
Mary Grace Jones South Pointe Special education resource teacher 
Claudia Kanabroski South Pointe English teacher 
Joana Suttle South Pointe Art teacher 
Katrina Torbert South Pointe Science teacher 
Gregory Tolliver South Pointe Guidance counselor 
LyAisha Barr Sullivan Middle level math teacher 
LyKaisha Barr Sullivan Middle level math teacher 
Lily Ann Hilario Sullivan Middle level science teacher 
Adelfa Lacaya Sullivan Middle level science teacher 
Kimberly Wise Sullivan Grade six English/LA teacher 
Lisa Derue Sunset Park Kindergarten teacher 
Tilanesha Manderville Sunset Park Grade four teacher 
Abby Cassidy York Road Grade one teacher 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



AS INFORMATION TO THE BOARD 

 
RESIGNATIONS – CERTIFIED (13) 

 
Stephanie Clark Applied Technology Center .5 FTE Health science teacher 
Amanda Leaphart Belleview School nurse 
Anne Love Castle Heights Grade six social studies teacher 
Samantha Feagin Exceptional Student Education School psychologist 
Kelsey Shoemaker Northwestern Science teacher 
Julie Cornwell Oakdale Grade two teacher 
Valerie Dixon Oakdale Grade two teacher 
Maquita Hinson Rawlinson Road Grade seven social studies teacher 
Noreen Hershelman Rawlinson Road Computer technology teacher 
Gloria Fiedler Rock Hill High English teacher 
Kristine M. Reid Saluda Trail  Special education resource teacher 
Justin Sutton South Pointe Math teacher 
Sara Zee South Pointe Special education resource teacher 

 
TRANSFERS – CERTIFIED (5) 

 
Janetta Morrison India Hook Elementary academic interventionist 
Lihua Tan Northwestern Chinese teacher 
Ina Pascal Phoenix Academy Business education teacher 
Jennifer Cannon Sylvia Circle/T3 Program Grades two & three teacher 
Tiffany Burris York Road Elementary academic interventionist 

 
NEW EMPLOYEES – NON-CERTIFIED (18) 

 
Page Putnam Administrative Services Purchasing assistant 
Carol-Lynn Quinn Ebenezer Avenue Montessori Lower elementary Montessori assistant 
Aimee Anderson Exceptional Student Education Sign language interpreter 
Jasmyn McDonald Finley Road Special education assistant/multi-cat I 
Derrick Amos Mt. Holly Behavior management assistant 
Gary Miller Northwestern Special education assistant/multi-cat II 
Keenen Littlejohn Northwestern Special education shadow assistant 
Ebony Able Old Pointe Special education assistant/multi-cat I 
Jada Wilson Old Pointe Special education assistant/multi-cat I 
Ninoska Rodriguez ParentSmart Bi-lingual parent educator 
Shnetha Dickerson Rawlinson Road Special education assistant/multi-cat II 
Katherine Jackson Rock Hill High Secretary/receptionist 
DeLawrence Whitlock Rock Hill High Special education assistant/multi-cat II 
Melody Minor Saluda Trail Secretary/receptionist 
Rhonda Gamble South Pointe Drop-out prevention assistant 
Melissa Payne Sullivan Secretary/guidance 
Erin Thorne Sunset Park Kindergarten assistant 
Edward White Sylvia Circle/T3 Program Instructional assistant 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



POSITION ELIMINATED – NON-CERTIFIED (1) 
 

Lindsey Jones Ebenezer Avenue Title I instructional assistant 
 

RESIGNATIONS – NON-CERTIFIED (8) 
 

Kim D. Bailey Central Office/Finance Administrative assistant 
Alex Fair Cherry Park Behavior management assistant 
Ricky Marshall Facilities Services General services leader 
Larry Stewart Facilities Services General maintenance 
Kisha Lockhart Finley Road Special education assistant/multi-cat II 
Winter Albohaire Mt. Holly Behavior management assistant 
Patricia Shipman Northwestern Secretary/guidance 
Deedra Witherspoon Rawlinson Road Special education assistant/multi-cat II 

 

TRANSFERS – NON-CERTIFIED (2) 
 

Nnaemeka Hardy-Wilson ParentSmart Parent Educator 
Alphonso Jones Rawlinson Road Behavior interventionist 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EMPLOYEES WORKING THROUGH SCECG 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE/CERTIFIED STAFF (8) 
 

Brenda Martin Belleview School nurse 
Angelia Green Central Office/Personnel Teacher support specialist 
Janet Morris Central Office/Personnel Teacher support specialist 
Melanie Burnette Ebinport Kindergarten teacher 
Juliene Jackson Finley Road Grade two teacher 
Karen Roof India Hook Physical education teacher 
Dr. Jean Dickson Lesslie Principal 
Michael Clarkson Rock Hill High Science teacher 

 
NON-CERTIFIED STAFF (2) 

 
Timothy Boan Facilities Services Electrician 
Donnie Hill Facilities Services HVAC foreman 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 























 
 

 
 
 
 
 
TO: Dr. Bill Cook, Superintendent 
 
FROM: Luanne Kokolis 
 
CC: Board Members 
 
DATE: August 21, 2019 
 
SUBJECT: C Policies for 1st Read 
 
 
 
Attached are the C policies for Board review for 1st read.  The organizational chart has 
been edited to reflect the position title. 





























































































   

  Finance 
  V:  803-981-1083    F:  803-980-2017 
 

 

  

Memo 
 

TO: Dr. Bill Cook 

FROM: Terri Smith 

DATE: August 21, 2019 

SUBJECT: Bond Resolution – 8% SCAGO General Obligation Debt for FY 2019-2020 
  

 

Our bond counsel in cooperation with our financial advisor has prepared the attached bond 

resolution for the Board of Trustees approval at the August 26, 2019 business meeting.  The 

attached bond resolution has been revised since the August 12, 2019 board work session to reflect a 

new not to exceed amount of $14,250,000.   

 

This bond resolution is authorizing the issuance and sale of not to exceed $14,250,000 general 

obligation bonds, in one or more series, and will utilize our 8% debt capacity.  This bond resolution 

is for the purpose of providing funds to pay for the acquisition and installation of technology, 

capital improvements and upgrades, student activity equipment as recommended in the 2017 

Student Activity Study, and the annual 2016 Acquisition, Use and Security Agreement payment.  

The revised bond resolution will not require an increase in tax millage.  Our Debt Service millage 

calculation remains at 52 mills.   

 

As stated in Policy DFAC, the debt service sinking fund will have a balance equal to or at least 20 

percent or 18 months of debt service payments for the district.  Worksheets are prepared annually 

which show a targeted minimum balance in the fund to ensure there is never a deficiency in 

paying full faith and credit general obligation bonds and the district maintains, and never puts at 

risk, the high credit ratings in place.  A high credit rating is very important as the district wants the 

lowest interest rate available especially when the district sells long-term bonds.  Any accumulation 

in the debt service fund is the difference between our budgeted value of a mill and the actual 

collectable value of a mill.  The budgeted number is always conservative to ensure there is enough 

monies to make the payments of full faith and credit general obligation bonds.  A copy of the 

revised worksheet is included in your board packet.  The revised worksheet shows a targeted 

minimum balance at December 31, 2020 of $1,000,000 instead of $5,000,000 as originally provided 

in the August 12, 2019 board packet. 

 

The fall SCAGO GO Debt program is scheduled to sell the last week in August 2019 and close late 

September 2019. 



York County School District No. 3 (Rock Hill) DRAFT 

Debt Service Fund Millage Levy Summary

( Tax Year 2019 )

Estimated Revenues

Beginning Balance on August 30, 2019: $11,600,000.00

Value of a Mill: $470,000.00 52.00 $24,440,000.00

Other: $0.00

Total Revenues: $36,040,000.00

Estimated Expenditures

Due Date Bond Series Principal Interest Total Grand Total

09/01/19 2014A $181,950.00 $181,950.00

09/01/19 2015A REF $965,400.00 $965,400.00

09/01/19 2016C REF $243,162.50 $243,162.50

09/01/19 2017B $2,346,725.00 $2,346,725.00 $3,737,237.50

03/01/20 2014A $1,670,000.00 $181,950.00 $1,851,950.00

03/01/20 2015A REF $2,645,000.00 $965,400.00 $3,610,400.00

03/01/20 2016C REF $955,000.00 $243,162.50 $1,198,162.50

03/01/20 2017B $4,690,000.00 $2,346,725.00 $7,036,725.00

03/02/20 2019 EST $13,918,000.00 $182,093.84 $14,100,093.84 $27,797,331.34

09/01/20 2014A $156,900.00 $156,900.00

09/01/20 2015A REF $899,275.00 $899,275.00

09/01/20 2016C REF $219,287.50 $219,287.50

09/01/20 2017B $2,229,475.00 $2,229,475.00 $3,504,937.50

Total Expenditures: $35,039,506.34

Ending Balance on June 30, 2020: $4,505,431.16

Ending Balance on December 31, 2020: $1,000,493.66

Target Ending Balance: $1,000,000.00

Variance: $493.66

8/20/2019



33977323 v1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

              

 

 

 

ROCK HILL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 3 OF YORK COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

 

 

 

 

 

A RESOLUTION 

 

 

AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE  OF NOT EXCEEDING $14,250,000 GENERAL 

OBLIGATION BONDS, IN ONE OR MORE SERIES, IN ONE OR MORE YEARS, WITH 

APPROPRIATE SERIES DESIGNATIONS, INCLUDING A TAX-EXEMPT SERIES AND A 

TAXABLE SERIES, IF APPROPRIATE, OF ROCK HILL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 3 OF YORK 

COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA; AUTHORIZING THE SOUTH CAROLINA ASSOCIATION OF 

GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATIONS TO FACILITATE THE SALE OF THE BONDS UNDER ITS 

GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT PROGRAM; PRESCRIBING THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

UNDER WHICH THE BONDS MAY BE ISSUED; AUTHORIZING THE SUPERINTENDENT OF 

THE SCHOOL DISTRICT TO DETERMINE CERTAIN MATTERS RELATING TO THE BONDS; 

PROVIDING FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE BONDS AND THE DISPOSITION OF THE PROCEEDS 

THEREOF; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO. 

 

 

Adopted:  August 26, 2019 

 

 

 

 

              

 



1 
33977323 v1 

BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF ROCK HILL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NO. 3 OF YORK COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 SECTION 1.  Definitions.  Unless the context shall clearly indicate some other meaning, the 

terms defined in this Section shall have, for all purposes of this Resolution, the meanings hereinafter 

specified, with the definitions equally applicable to both the singular and plural forms and vice versa.  

The term:  

 

 “Acquisition Agreement” shall mean the Acquisition, Use and Security Agreement between the 

School District and Banc of America Public Capital Corp. dated December 27, 2016. 

 

 “Acquisition Payments” shall mean those payments made pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement. 

 

  “Board” shall mean the Board of Trustees of Rock Hill School District No. 3 of York County, 

South Carolina. 

 

 “Bond Act” shall mean Title 59, Chapter 71, Article 1 and Section 11-27-50 of the S.C. Code. 

 

 “Bondholder” or the term “Holder” or any similar term shall mean the registered owner of the 

Bond.   

 

 “Bonds” shall mean the total aggregate principal amount of general obligation bonds authorized 

and issued pursuant to this Resolution. 

 

 “Books of Registry” shall mean the registration books maintained by the Registrar in accordance 

with Section 7 hereof. 

 

 “District Superintendent” shall mean the Superintendent of the School District. 

 

 “IRC” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

 

 “Paying Agent” shall mean the School District.  

 

 “Registrar” shall mean the School District.  

 

 “Resolution” shall mean this Resolution. 

 

 “SCAGO” shall mean the South Carolina Association of Governmental Organizations.  

 

 “SCAGO Certificates” shall mean certificates of participation evidencing undivided proportionate 

interests in the GO Debt of the participating school districts issued by SCAGO pursuant to the SCAGO Trust 

Agreement.  

 

 “SCAGO Trust Agreement” shall mean the Trust Agreement by and between SCAGO and Wells 

Fargo Bank, N.A. or such other bank named therein, as trustee, dated as of a date to be determined by the 

parties thereto pursuant to which the SCAGO Certificates will be issued. 

 

 “S.C. Code” shall mean the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended. 

 

 “School District” shall mean Rock Hill School District No. 3 of York County, South Carolina. 

 



2 
33977323 v1 

 “School District Representative” shall mean the person or persons at the time designated to act on 

behalf of the School District in matters relating to the Bonds as evidenced by a written certificate 

furnished to SCAGO and the trustee thereunder containing the specimen signature of such person or 

persons and signed on behalf of the School District by the Chair or Vice Chair of the Board or the District 

Superintendent.  Such certificate may designate an alternate or alternates each of whom shall be entitled 

to perform all duties of the School District Representative. 

 

 “State” shall mean the State of South Carolina. 

 

 “Taxable Bonds” shall mean that portion of the Bonds authorized and issued hereunder, the 

interest on which is includable in the gross income of the bondholders thereof for federal income tax 

purposes pursuant to the provisions of the IRC and the regulations promulgated thereunder in effect on 

the date of original issuance of the Bonds. 

 

 “Tax-Exempt Bonds” shall mean that portion of the Bonds authorized and issued hereunder, the 

interest on which is not includable in the gross income of the bondholders thereof for federal income tax 

purposes pursuant to the provisions of the IRC and the regulations promulgated thereunder in effect on 

the date of original issuance of the Bonds. 

 

 SECTION 2. Findings and Determinations.  The Board hereby finds and determines: 

 

 (a) The School District was created under the provisions of Act No. 354 (1953 Acts), the 

name designated as “Rock Hill School District No. 3 of York County” pursuant to Act No. 296 (1985 

Acts), and the number of trustees and manner of their election set pursuant to Act 470 (2000 Acts). The 

Board is the governing body of the School District. 

 

 (b) Article X, Section 15, of the Constitution of the State of South Carolina, 1895, as 

amended (the “Constitution”), provides that after November 30, 1982, the governing body of any school 

district may incur general obligation debt in an amount not exceeding eight percent (8%) of the assessed 

value of all taxable property of such school district and upon such terms and conditions as the General 

Assembly may prescribe.  

 

 (c) The Bond Act provides that the board of trustees of any school district may issue general 

obligation bonds of such school district for the purpose of defraying the cost of “capital improvements” 

(as defined therein) to any amount not exceeding the constitutional debt limitation applicable to such 

school district.  The Bond Act requires that the county board of education wherein the school district is 

located, if there is such, approve the issuance of such general obligation bonds. 

 

 (d) Section 11-27-50(2) of the Bond Act further provides that if an election be prescribed by 

the provisions of the Bond Act but is not required by the provisions of Article X of the Constitution, then 

in every such instance, no election need be held and the remaining provisions of the Bond Act shall 

constitute a full and complete authorization to issue bonds in accordance with such remaining provisions. 

Section 11-27-90 of the S.C. Code further provides that any school district of the State may issue bonds in 

fully registered form. 

 

(e) The School District’s Financial Advisor, Compass Municipal Advisors, LLC (“CMA”) 

has advised the School District that SCAGO has been formed to facilitate one or more pooled borrowing 

programs including a pooled general obligation debt program (the “SCAGO GO Program”) for school 

districts in the State. Each participating school district in the SCAGO GO Program will have its general 

obligation debt (“GO Debt”) sold together with GO Debt issued by the other participating school districts 

in order to achieve a lower net interest cost and lower issuance costs associated with its GO Debt. 



3 
33977323 v1 

Pursuant to the terms of the SCAGO GO Program, SCAGO will cause the execution and delivery of the 

SCAGO Certificates pursuant to the SCAGO Trust Agreement. 

 

 (f) The School District previously has entered into the Acquisition Agreement, the proceeds 

of which were used to purchase certain equipment listed in Exhibit A to the Acquisition Agreement (the 

“Equipment”).  Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement, the School District is to make Acquisition 

Payments in exchange for which the School District will receive unencumbered title to an undivided 

interest in the Equipment.  

 

  (g) The assessed value of all taxable property in the School District, as of June 30, 2018, is 

$470,443,657.  Eight (8%) percent of such sum is $37,635,492.  The School District has no outstanding 

general obligation debt subject to the limitation imposed by Article X, Section 15(6) of the Constitution.  

Thus, the School District may incur $37,635,492 of general obligation debt within its applicable 

constitutional debt limitation. 

 

(h) Pursuant to a Resolution adopted by the Board on January 27, 2014, the School District 

adopted Written Procedures Related to Tax-Exempt Debt. 

 

 (i)  It is in the best interest of the School District to participate in the SCAGO GO Program 

and to provide for the issuance and sale of the Bonds of the School District pursuant to the aforesaid 

provisions of the Constitution and laws of the State in the principal amount not exceeding $14,250,000 

for the purposes of providing funds to pay some or all of the 2019-2020 fiscal year Acquisition Payments, 

to defray the costs of capital improvements and upgrades as shall be determined by the Board in 

accordance with the School District’s capital financing plan (the “Projects”) and to pay costs of issuance 

of the Bonds. 

   

 SECTION 3. Authorization and Details of Bonds.  Pursuant to the aforesaid provisions of the 

Constitution and laws of the State, there is hereby authorized to be issued not exceeding $14,250,000 

general obligation bonds of the School District to obtain funds for the purposes mentioned in Section 2(i) 

above, including any financial and legal fees relating thereto and other incidental costs of issuing the 

Bonds. The Bonds will be issued in one or more series, in one or more years, each with an appropriate 

series designation, and, if necessary, one or more of the series of Bonds may be designated as Taxable 

Bonds. 

 

Each of the Bonds shall be issued as single fully-registered Bonds; shall be dated as of the date on 

which each Bond is delivered to the initial purchaser thereof or such other date as the District 

Superintendent determines; shall be in denominations equal to the respective par amount of each Bond 

not exceeding $14,250,000 in the aggregate; shall bear interest (calculated on the basis of a 360-day year 

comprising twelve 30-day months) from their respective dates payable on the maturity date thereof, at 

such rates as may be determined by the District Superintendent at the time of the sale thereof; and shall 

mature on such dates as determined by the District Superintendent. 

 

 Both the principal of and interest on the Bonds shall be payable in any coin or currency of the 

United States of America which is, at the time of payment, legal tender for public and private debts.  The 

School District shall serve as Registrar and Paying Agent for the Bonds. 

 

 SECTION 4.  Redemption Provisions.  The Bonds shall not be subject to redemption prior to 

their respective stated maturities. 

   



4 
33977323 v1 

 SECTION 5.  Delegation of Authority.  For each series of Bonds, the District Superintendent is 

hereby authorized and empowered to:  (a) determine the par amount of the Bonds; (b) determine the original 

issue date of the Bonds; (c) determine the respective maturity dates and respective principal amounts 

maturing on such dates; (d) determine the interest payment date and principal payment date if different from 

that set forth herein; (e) designate a Paying Agent and Registrar for the Bonds if different from that set forth 

herein; (f) determine the date and time of sale of the Bonds; (g) receive bids on behalf of the School District 

and award the sale of the Bonds in accordance with the terms of the Notice of Sale for the Bonds; and (h) 

execute all other agreements, certificates and documents as may be necessary or required in connection with 

the issuance of the Bonds. 

 

 SECTION 6.  Authorization to Sell General Obligation Bonds outside the SCAGO GO Program.  

The Board hereby delegates to the District Superintendent the authority to cause any series of Bonds 

authorized herein to be sold and issued outside the SCAGO GO Program.  The District Superintendent, 

upon advice from Bond Counsel, is hereby authorized to approve the forms of such documents as shall be 

necessary to issue any series of Bonds as a separate stand-alone Bond.  The Chair, Vice Chair, District 

Superintendent or other authorized officials of the School District are hereby authorized to execute and 

delivery the documents as approved by the District Superintendent. 

 

 SECTION 7.  Registration, Transfer and Exchange of Bonds.  The School District shall cause the 

Books of Registry to be kept at the offices of the School District, as Registrar for the registration and transfer 

of the Bonds.  Upon presentation at its office for such purpose, the Registrar shall register or transfer, or cause 

to be registered or transferred, on such Books of Registry, the Bonds under such reasonable regulations as the 

Registrar may prescribe. 

 

 The Bonds shall be transferable only upon the Books of Registry of the School District, which shall 

be kept for such purpose at the principal office of the School District, as Registrar, by the registered owner 

thereof in person or by his duly authorized attorney upon surrender thereof together with a written instrument 

of transfer satisfactory to the Registrar duly executed by the registered owner or his duly authorized attorney.  

Upon the transfer of any such Bond or Bonds, the School District, as Registrar shall issue in the name of the 

transferee a new fully-registered Bond of the same aggregate principal amount, interest rate and maturity as 

the surrendered Bond.  Any Bond surrendered in exchange for a new registered Bond pursuant to this Section 

shall be canceled by the Registrar. 

 

 The School District, as the Registrar and the Paying Agent may deem or treat the person in whose 

name the fully-registered Bonds shall be registered upon the Books of Registry as the absolute owners of 

such Bonds, whether such Bonds shall be overdue or not, for the purpose of receiving payment of the 

principal of and interest on such Bonds and for all other purposes; and all such payments so made to any such 

registered owner or upon his order shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such 

Bonds to the extent of the sum or sums so paid, and the School District, as the Registrar and the Paying Agent 

shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.  In all cases in which the privilege of transferring the 

Bonds is exercised, the School District shall execute and the School District, as Registrar shall authenticate 

and deliver the Bonds in accordance with the provisions of this Resolution.  The School District as the 

Registrar and the Paying Agent shall not be obliged to make any such transfer of the Bond or Bonds during 

the fifteen (15) days preceding the maturity date on the Bond or Bonds.   

 

 SECTION 8. Form of Bonds.  The Bonds shall be substantially in the form attached hereto as 

Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference, subject to such changes, additions or deletions as may be 

approved by the District Superintendent.     



5 
33977323 v1 

 

 SECTION 9. Execution and Delivery of the Bonds.  The Bonds shall be executed in the name of 

the School District with the manual or facsimile signature of the Chair or Vice Chair of the Board attested 

by the manual or facsimile signature of the Secretary of the Board under the seal of the School District 

which shall be impressed, imprinted or reproduced thereon.  The Bonds shall not be valid or become 

obligatory for any purpose unless there shall have been endorsed thereon a certificate of authentication. 

The Bonds shall bear a certificate of authentication manually executed by the School District, as Registrar 

in substantially the form set forth herein.   

 

 The School District Representatives are further authorized and directed to deliver the respective 

Bonds upon the terms and conditions provided herein and under the SCAGO GO Program, to receive or 

cause to be received the proceeds of the sale of the respective Bonds, to execute and deliver such 

certificates and other closing documents and take such other action as may be necessary or appropriate in 

order to effectuate the proper issuance, sale and delivery of the respective Bonds.  

 

 Each participating school district in the SCAGO GO Program will be the issuer of its respective 

GO Debt and undivided proportionate interests therein will be evidenced by the SCAGO Certificates 

executed and delivered under the SCAGO Trust Agreement. The Board approves and consents to the 

assignment and pledge of the Bonds under the provisions of the SCAGO Trust Agreement and approves 

the execution and delivery by the trustee of the SCAGO Certificates upon payment of the purchase price 

thereof, all as contemplated by the SCAGO GO Program. 

 

 SECTION 10.  Sale of Bonds; Form of Notice of Sale.  The respective Bonds shall be sold at 

public sale, after advertisement of the sale in a newspaper having general circulation in the State or, as 

determined by the District Superintendent, upon the advice of CMA, in a financial publication published 

in the City of New York or, in the discretion of the District Superintendent, in both publications. As 

authorized by Section 11-27-50(7)(b) of the S.C. Code, the advertisement must appear not less than seven 

(7) days prior to the date set as a sale date for such sale. 

 

 The Notice of Sale shall be in substantially the form set forth as Exhibit B. 

 

 SECTION 11. Deposit and Use of Proceeds.  (a) Upon the purchase and delivery of the proceeds 

of the Bonds, the proceeds derived from the sale of the Bonds shall be deposited with the York County 

Treasurer (the “County Treasurer”) in a special fund to the credit of the School District and shall be 

applied solely to the purposes for which the Bonds have been issued, including payment of costs of 

issuance or at the direction of the County Treasurer, the proceeds derived from the sale of the Bonds, less 

costs of issuance, shall be deposited into an acquisition fund in the name of the School District to be 

known as the “Rock Hill School District No. 3 of York County, South Carolina, General Obligation 

Bond, Series 2019 Acquisition Fund” (the “Acquisition Fund”), which shall be established under the 

SCAGO Trust Agreement.  The School District may withdraw amounts from the Acquisition Fund on the 

date of delivery of the Bonds and thereafter on any business day.  “Business Day” shall mean any day 

except Saturday, Sunday or a holiday. 

 

 (b) The costs of issuance of the Bonds shall, at the direction of the County Treasurer, be 

deposited in the Costs of Issuance Account of the Expense Fund created pursuant to the SCAGO Trust 

Agreement or may be paid as determined by a School District Representative. Any remaining proceeds 

shall be applied for any purposes authorized by the Board. 

 



6 
33977323 v1 

 (c) Disbursements from the Acquisition Fund and the Expense Fund (as defined in the 

SCAGO Trust Agreement) shall be made upon the written order of a School District Representative or the 

County Treasurer, as designated on the appropriate form, solely for the purpose for which the Bonds were 

issued. 

 

 SECTION 12.  Security.   The full faith, credit, resources and taxing power of the School District 

are hereby irrevocably pledged for the payment of the principal and interest on the Bonds as they 

respectively mature and for the creation of such sinking fund as may be necessary therefor.  There shall 

be levied annually by the York County Auditor (the “County Auditor”) and collected by the County 

Treasurer in the same manner as county taxes are levied and collected, a tax, without limit, on all taxable 

property in the School District sufficient to pay the principal and interest of the Bonds as they 

respectively mature and to create such sinking fund as may be necessary therefor. 

 

 The County Auditor and the County Treasurer shall be notified as to the delivery of and payment 

for the Bonds and are hereby directed to levy and collect, respectively, on all taxable property in the 

School District, a tax, without limit, on all taxable property in the School District sufficient to pay the 

principal and interest of the Bonds as they respectively mature and to create such sinking fund as may be 

necessary therefor. 

 

 SECTION 13. Sinking Fund; Payment of Bonds. The School District covenants that it will 

deposit or cause to be deposited into the applicable sinking fund, and the County Treasurer is hereby 

authorized and directed to deposit or cause to be deposited into such sinking fund payments relating to the 

Bonds on or before their respective maturity dates. The County Treasurer, on behalf of the School District 

and at the written direction of a School District Representative, shall transfer or cause to be transferred 

from time to time any moneys then on deposit in the sinking fund to the trustee under the SCAGO Trust 

Agreement. 

 

 SECTION 14. Federal Tax Covenants. The School District hereby covenants and agrees with the 

holders of the Tax-Exempt Bonds that it will not take any action which will, or fail to take any action 

which failure will, cause interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds to become includable in the gross income of 

the bondholders thereof for federal income tax purposes pursuant to the provisions of the IRC and the 

regulations promulgated thereunder in effect on the date of original issuance of the Tax-Exempt Bonds 

and that no use of the proceeds of the Tax-Exempt Bonds shall be made which, if such use had been 

reasonably expected on the date of issue of the Tax-Exempt Bonds would have caused the Tax-Exempt 

Bonds to be “arbitrage bonds” as defined in the IRC and to that end the School District shall: 

 

(a)   comply with the applicable provisions of Section 103 and Sections 141 through 150 of 

the IRC so long as the Tax-Exempt Bonds are outstanding; 

 

(b) establish such funds, make such calculations and pay such amounts, in the manner and at 

the times required in order to comply with the requirements of the IRC relating to required arbitrage 

rebates of certain amounts to the United States; and 

 

 (c) make such reports of information at the time and places required by the IRC. 

 

 SECTION 15. Exemption from State Taxes.  Both the principal of and interest on the Bonds shall 

in accordance with the provisions of Section 12-2-50 of the S.C. Code be exempt from all State, county, 

municipal, school district, and all other taxes or assessments, except estate or other transfer taxes, direct 

or indirect, general or special, whether imposed for the purpose of general revenue or otherwise. 

 



7 
33977323 v1 

 SECTION 16. Events of Default.  The School District agrees that each of the following events 

may be considered an “Event of Default” under the SCAGO Trust Agreement: 

 

 (a) If default shall be made in the due and punctual payment of principal of or any interest on 

the Bonds, including failure to make when due a sinking fund payment under Section 13 of this 

Resolution; or 

 

 (b) If the School District shall default in the performance of any covenant, agreement or 

condition on its part to be performed under the Bonds or this Resolution other than a default in payment, 

and such default shall continue for a period of 30 days after written notice thereof is received by the 

School District. 

 

SECTION 17. Remedies. The School District agrees that each of the following may be included 

as remedy for an “Event of Default” under the SCAGO Trust Agreement:  

 

  (a) In any case of an Event of Default, the trustee under the SCAGO Trust Agreement may 

take such action or actions for the enforcement of the rights of the owners as due diligence, prudence and 

care would require and to pursue the same with like diligence, prudence and care, including 

commencement of an action for mandamus or other appropriate action to require the School District to 

comply with the terms of this Resolution. 

 

(b) If the School District shall fail or refuse to make any required deposit on the relevant 

sinking fund payment date in order to make the transfer to its applicable Sinking Fund Account, the 

trustee under the SCAGO Trust Agreement, shall take such action as is necessary to invoke the provisions 

of Section 59-71-155 of the S.C. Code regarding transfers from the State general fund to make payments 

on bonded indebtedness of South Carolina school districts; and upon being indemnified against cost and 

expense, exercise any remedy at law or in equity for the benefit of the owners of the SCAGO Certificates, 

and shall disburse all funds so collected to the holders of the SCAGO Certificates or assignee of the 

Bonds. 

 

 SECTION 18. SCAGO.  The School District hereby authorizes SCAGO to facilitate the sale of 

the respective Bonds together with other GO Debt issued by other participating school districts in the 

SCAGO GO Program as determined by SCAGO. 

  

 SECTION 19. Acknowledgement of SCAGO Certificates; Registered Owner; Limitation of 

Liability. The School District, by participating in the SCAGO GO Program, recognizes the rights of the 

owners of the SCAGO Certificates, acting directly or through the trustee under the SCAGO Trust 

Agreement, to enforce the obligations and covenants contained in the Bonds and this Resolution; 

provided that in no event shall the School District be liable for any obligations, covenants or damages 

except those which arise out of the Bonds authorized by this Resolution, and, in particular, the School 

District shall not be liable for any obligations, liabilities, acts or omissions of SCAGO or any other 

participating school district in the SCAGO GO Program. 

 

 SECTION 20. Discharge of Resolution.  If the School District shall pay or cause to be paid, or 

there shall otherwise be paid, to the owner or owners of a SCAGO Certificate, the total principal and 

interest due or to become due thereon through maturity (as determined in accordance with the SCAGO 

Trust Agreement), in the manner stipulated therein and in this Resolution, then the pledge of the full faith, 

credit and taxing power of the School District under this Resolution, and all covenants, agreements and 

other obligations of the School District hereunder, shall thereupon cease, terminate and become void and 

be discharged and satisfied with respect to the Bonds for which such payment was made.  

 



8 
33977323 v1 

SECTION 21.  Continuing Disclosure.  If applicable, the School District hereby covenants and 

agrees that it will comply with and carry out all of the provisions of a Continuing Disclosure Certificate.  

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Resolution, failure of the School District to comply with the 

Continuing Disclosure Certificate shall not be considered an event of default, and no liability for damages 

shall attach therefor.  The sole remedy for such failure to comply shall be that any bondholder may take 

such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific performance by 

court order, to cause the School District to comply with their obligations under this Section. 

 

SECTION 22. Filings with Central Repository.  In compliance with Section 11-1-85 of the S.C. 

Code, the School District covenants that it will file or cause to be filed with a central repository for further 

availability in the secondary bond market when requested: (a) a copy of the annual audit of the School 

District within thirty (30) days of the School District's receipt thereof; and (b) within thirty (30) days of 

the occurrence thereof, relevant information of an event which, in the opinion of the School District, 

adversely affects more than five percent (5%) of the School District's revenue or its tax base.  

 

 SECTION 23.  Declaration of Intent to Reimburse Certain Expenditures.  This Resolution shall 

constitute the School District’s declaration of official intent pursuant to Regulation §1.150-2 of the IRC to 

reimburse the School District from a portion of the proceeds of the Tax-Exempt Bonds for expenditures it 

anticipates incurring (the “Expenditures”) with respect to the Projects prior to the issuance of the Bonds.  

The Expenditures which are reimbursed are limited to Expenditures which are: (1) properly chargeable to 

a capital account (or would be so chargeable with a proper election or with the application of the 

definition of placed in service under Regulation §1.150-2 of the IRC) under general federal income tax 

principals; or (2) certain de minimis or preliminary Expenditures satisfying the requirements of 

Regulation §1.150-2(f) of the IRC. The source of funds for the Expenditures with respect to the Projects 

will be the School District’s reserve funds.  To be eligible for reimbursement of the Expenditures, the 

reimbursement allocation must be made not later than 18 months after the later of (a) the date on which 

the Expenditures were paid; or (b) the date such Projects were placed in service, but in no event more than 

three (3) years after the original Expenditures.  

 

 SECTION 24.   Authorization.  The Chair of the Board, the Vice Chair of the Board, the 

Secretary of the Board, the District Superintendent and the Chief Financial Officer of the School District, 

are fully empowered and authorized to take such further action and to execute and deliver such additional 

documents and certificates as may be necessary to effect the issuance of the Bonds. The Board hereby 

retains Burr & Forman LLP (Burr Forman McNair), as Bond Counsel and Compass Municipal Advisors, 

LLC, as Financial Advisor with regard to the issuance of the Bonds. The District Superintendent is further 

authorized to execute such contracts, documents or engagement letters as may be necessary and appropriate 

to effectuate these engagements.  

 

 SECTION 25.  Repeal of Conflicting Resolutions.  All rules, policies, regulations, resolutions and 

parts thereof, procedural or otherwise, in conflict herewith or the proceedings authorizing the issuance of 

the Bonds are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed, and this Resolution shall take effect and be 

in full force from and after its adoption. 

 

[Signature page follows] 

 



Signature Page to Resolution 
33977323 v1 

   

 

Adopted this 26th day of August, 2019. 

 

ROCK HILL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 3 OF YORK 

COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

 

 

____________________________________   

Chair, Board of Trustees 

 

(SEAL) 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Secretary, Board of Trustees 

 

 

 

 



A-1 
33977323 v1 

EXHIBIT A 

 

FORM OF BOND 

 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

ROCK HILL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 3 OF YORK COUNTY 

[TAXABLE] GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND, SERIES _____ 

 

No. R-1  
 

INTEREST RATE MATURITY DATE BOND PAYMENT DATE ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE 

    

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: 

REGISTERED HOLDER: South Carolina Association of Governmental Organizations 

 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the School District identified above (the 

“School District”), is justly indebted and, for value received, hereby promises to pay to the registered 

holder named above, or registered assigns, the principal amount shown above on the maturity date shown 

above and to pay interest on such principal sum from the date hereof at the interest rate per annum shown 

above until this Bond matures.  Interest on this Bond is payable at maturity and shall be payable to the 

person in whose name this Bond is registered on the registration books of the School District maintained 

by the registrar, presently the School District (the “Registrar”).  The principal and interest on this Bond 

are payable in any coin or currency of the United States of America which is, at the time of payment, 

legal tender for public and private debts; provided, however, that principal and interest on this fully 

registered Bond shall be paid by check, draft or transfer of funds. 

 

The principal and interest on the Bond shall be paid to the Trustee under the SCAGO Trust 

Agreement (as defined in the Resolution) on or before the Bond Payment Date identified above. 

 

This Bond shall not be entitled to any benefit under the resolution of the School District 

authorizing this Bond (the “Resolution”), nor become valid or obligatory for any purpose, until the 

Certificate of Authentication hereon shall have been duly executed by the Registrar. 

 

For the payment of the principal and interest on this Bond as they respectively mature and for the 

creation of such sinking fund as may be necessary therefor the full faith, credit, resources and taxing 

power of the School District are hereby irrevocably pledged, and there shall be levied annually by the 

Auditor of the county in which the School District is located (the “County”) and collected by the 

Treasurer of the County, in the same manner as County taxes are levied and collected, a tax, without limit, 

on all taxable property in the School District sufficient to pay the principal and interest of this Bond as 

they respectively mature and to create such sinking fund as may be necessary therefor. 

 

This Bond is issued pursuant to and in accordance with the Constitution of the State of South 

Carolina, 1895, as amended (the “Constitution”), and laws of the State of South Carolina (the “State”), 

including Article X, Section 15 of the Constitution; Title 59, Chapter 71, Article 1, Code of Laws of 

South Carolina, 1976, as amended; Title 11, Chapter 27, Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as 

amended; and the Resolution. 



A-2 
33977323 v1 

 

This Bond is not subject to redemption prior to maturity. 

 

Except for the initial assignment of this Bond to the Trustee under the SCAGO Trust Agreement 

(as defined in the Resolution), this Bond is transferable, only upon the books of the School District kept 

for that purpose at the principal office of the Registrar by the registered holder in person or by his duly 

authorized attorney upon surrender of this Bond together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory 

to the Registrar duly executed by the registered holder or his duly authorized attorney.  Thereupon a new 

fully registered Bond of the same aggregate principal amount, interest rate, and maturity shall be issued to 

the transferee in exchange therefor as provided in the Resolution.  The School District, as the Registrar 

and the Paying Agent, may deem and treat the person in whose name this Bond is registered as the 

absolute owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment of or on account of the principal hereof and 

interest due hereon and for all other purposes. 

 

Under the laws of the State, this Bond and the interest hereon are exempt from all State, county, 

municipal, school district and other taxes or assessments, except estate or other transfer taxes, direct or 

indirect, general or special, whether imposed for the purpose of general revenue or otherwise. 

 

It is hereby certified and recited that all acts, conditions and things required by the Constitution 

and laws of the State to exist, to happen and to be performed precedent to or in the issuance of this Bond 

exist, have happened and have been performed in regular and due time, form and manner as required by 

law; that the amount of this Bond, together with all other indebtedness of the School District does not 

exceed the applicable limitation of indebtedness under the laws of the State; and, that provision has been 

made for the levy and collection of a tax, without limit, on all taxable property in the School District 

sufficient to pay the principal and interest of this Bond as they respectively mature and to create such 

sinking fund as may be necessary therefor. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the aforesaid School District has caused this Bond to be signed with 

the manual/facsimile signature of the Chair of the Board of Trustees of the School District, attested by the 

manual/facsimile signature of the Secretary of the Board of Trustees of the School District and the seal of 

the School District impressed, imprinted or reproduced hereon. 

 

ROCK HILL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 3 OF YORK 

COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

 

 

__________________________________________ 

Chair, Board of Trustees 

(SEAL) 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Secretary, Board of Trustees 

 



A-3 
33977323 v1 

REGISTRAR'S CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

Date of Authentication: 

This Bond is one of the bonds described in the within mentioned Resolution of Rock Hill 

School District No. 3 of York County, South Carolina. 

Rock Hill School District No. 3 of York County, 

South Carolina, as Registrar 

 

 

By:  

 Secretary, Board of Trustees 

 

The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription on the face of this Bond, shall 

be construed as though they were written out in full according to applicable laws or regulations.   

TEN COM - as tenants in common   UNIF GIFT MIN ACT - 

TEN NET - as tenants by the    _____ Custodian _____ 

  entireties    (Cust)  (Minor) 

under Uniform Gifts to 

JT TEN  - as joint tenants with    Minors Act _________ 

right of survivorship      (State) 

and not as tenants in  

common  

Additional abbreviations may also be used though not in above list. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

B-1 
33977323 v1 

EXHIBIT B 

 

FORM OF SUMMARY NOTICE OF SALE 

 

 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that each of the following school districts (the “School Districts”) 

shall offer collectively for public sale its general obligation bond (collectively, the “Bonds”) in the 

amounts indicated on __________, ________, 20__. 

 

[PRINCIPAL AMOUNTS AND NAMES OF 

PARTICIPATING SCHOOL DISTRICTS] 

 

 The Bonds will be collectively sold as the South Carolina Association of Governmental 

Organizations Certificates of Participation, Series 20____ (Evidencing Undivided Proportionate Interests 

in General Obligation Debt of Certain South Carolina School Districts) (the “Certificates”). 

 

 Sale Date:   ______________, 20__ 

 

 Sale Time:   _______ a.m., South Carolina time 

 

 Bonds Dated:   ______________, 20__ 

 

 Interest Payment:  March ___, 20__ 

  

 Maturity:   March ___, 20__ 

 

 Redemption provisions:  The Certificates and Bonds are not subject to redemption. 

 

 Book-Entry-Only:  The Certificates will be book-entry-only. 

 

 Legal Opinion:   Burr & Forman LLP, Columbia, South Carolina 

 

 Financial Advisor:  Compass Municipal Advisors, LLC, Columbia, South Carolina 

 

 Proposals will be received by Compass Municipal Advisors, LLC on behalf of the South Carolina 

Association of Governmental Organizations and the School Districts.  The Certificates will be issued in 

book-entry only form in denominations of $100,000 and integral multiples of $1,000 in excess of 

$100,000.  A copy of the Preliminary Offering Circular in deemed final form and the Official Terms and 

Conditions of Sale are available via the internet at officialstatements.compassmuni.com. 

 

 For additional information, please contact the School Districts’ Bond Counsel, Francenia B. 

Heizer, Esquire, Burr & Forman LLP (Burr Forman McNair), telephone (803) 799-9800; e-mail: 

fheizer@burr.com or the School Districts’ financial advisor, Brian Nurick, Managing Director, Compass 

Municipal Advisors, LLC, telephone (859) 368-9616, e-mail:  brian.nurick@compassmuni.com. 

 

_______________________________ 

*Preliminary, subject to change. 

 

 

http://us-api.mimecast.com/redirect/eNpdjrEOwjAMRP8lc0lVioTUiYpPQGxdLNelluokih0GEP9OQEys9-707ukSoBvc-XoZ9_3YHV3jMt04hhoW3UFiLyyEoOYxSsVY1KJQxjjT_xKT1WhZiR-UT4IBOPtAVlni2Q2HvnElb7WzmqVhaqc2Lgsjw6YGRkLB9ONJoCol8M95p6zfT93rDeKPOx8
http://us-api.mimecast.com/redirect/eNpdjrEOwjAMRP8lc0lVioTUiYpPQGxdLNelluokih0GEP9OQEys9-707ukSoBvc-XoZ9_3YHV3jMt04hhoW3UFiLyyEoOYxSsVY1KJQxjjT_xKT1WhZiR-UT4IBOPtAVlni2Q2HvnElb7WzmqVhaqc2Lgsjw6YGRkLB9ONJoCol8M95p6zfT93rDeKPOx8
mailto:fheizer@burr.com
mailto:fheizer@burr.com
mailto:brian.nurick@compassmuni.com
mailto:brian.nurick@compassmuni.com


 

 

 
Memorandum 
TO: Dr. Bill Cook 
FROM: Mychal Frost 
DATE: August 21, 2019  
SUBJECT: Announcements for August 26th School Board Meeting 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Opening Week 
Over the past week, our team successfully supported the opening of the 2019-2020 school year. We look 
forward to sharing with you at our September 9th meeting video highlights of our first week. You are encouraged 
to connect with the school district on social media and follow our hashtag #OneTeamOneMissionOneRockHill 
where pictures and video clips are shared highlighting our vision for 2020, “Can you see it?” 
 
Community Partners & Volunteers Recognition 
Earlier this evening, it was a pleasure to welcome more than 50 community partners and volunteers to a 
reception that was held in their honor for their contributions and service to our schools over the past year. We 
appreciate each group represented this evening and say thank you once again for their efforts to partner with 
our schools and departments to serve the students and teachers of our district.  
 
Upcoming Closure 
The school district will be closed on Monday, September 2nd for Labor Day.  
 
Realtors Lunch and Learn 
On September 10, district leaders will be hosting the first Lunch and Learn in a series of informational sessions 
that will be scheduled throughout the year with key stakeholder groups in our community. Our first session 
welcomes area real estate agents for an opportunity to engage in dialogue about our school district and our 
unique programs that set our district apart from others in our area. Additional sessions will be scheduled with 
representatives from our civic and faith community as well as government leaders. 
 
Follow Capital Program Updates 
You are encouraged to visit the district's capital building program, "Build on the Rock," website – www.rock-
hill.k12.sc.us/BuildOnTheRock -- for more information on capital projects. The website provides status updates 
on active and planned construction projects in the district. On the page, viewers can see project descriptions, 
before and after photographs, and construction timelines.  
 
Upcoming Board Meetings 
The School Board will next meet on Monday, September 9 for its work session and on Monday, September 23 
for its business meeting. Both meetings will streamed on our website and available for viewing on-demand 
immediately following each broadcast. We invite our community to watch meetings live on our Facebook 
broadcasts at Facebook.com/RockHillSchools.  

Marketing & Communications Department 
Telephone:  981-1008  -   Fax:  981-1094 



                 

Engaging Students for Successful Futures 
               

              386 E. Black Street            T:  (803) 981-1000 

              P.O. Drawer 10072            F:  (803) 981-1094 

              Rock Hill, SC 29731          www.rock-hill.k12.sc.us 

 
            

  

 

Memorandum 
 
TO: Board of Trustees 

                         

FROM: Dr. Bill Cook, Superintendent 

   

DATE: August 22, 2019 

 

SUBJECT: Rock Hill Symphony Presentation 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Dr. Sarah Lynn Hayes and other members of the Rock Hill Symphony board will have a 

presentation for our Board of Trustees at the August 26 business meeting. 

 

 

 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
TO: Dr. William Cook 
 
FROM: Luanne Kokolis 
 
CC: Board Members 
 
DATE: August 21, 2019 
 
SUBJECT: Nursing Services Update 
 
Mrs. Sadie Kirell, Lead Clinical Nurse, will present information related to nurse staffing 
in our schools and the school data reported from the 18-19 school year for nursing 
services. 



 

Memo 
 
TO:  Dr. Bill Cook, Superintendent    

 

FROM: Missy Brakefield  

  Executive Director of Elementary Education  

 

DATE: August 20, 2019   

 

SUBJECT: Summer Reading Camp 2019-Read to Succeed  

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

On June 11, 2014, Governor Haley signed into law Act 284 (Read to Succeed). The purpose of 

this piece of legislation is to improve literacy rates of the students in South Carolina. One of the 

many components of Read to Succeed is third grade summer reading camps. Each district must 

identify third grade students who are not reading proficiently on grade level and provide them 

with the opportunity to attend a summer reading camp. 

Attached is a presentation highlighting Summer Reading Camp 2019. This camp was provided 

for identified students in accordance to SC Read to Succeed program requirements. 

 

Data related to students participating in and completing Summer Reading Camp 2019 are 

provided in the presentation. This presentation will be shared with the Board on Monday, 

August 26. Please let me know if you have any questions.  

 

Academics and Accountability 

Phone:  803-981-1055  



One Team. One Mission. One Rock Hill.

Read to Succeed 
Summer Reading Camp

2018-2019



One Team. One Mission. One Rock Hill.

Summer Reading Camp R2S 2019
Overview

479 Grade 3 Students Invited

Based on Fall, 2018 Reading MAP Scores (Below 181)

173 Students Attended 

Mandatory Attendance for 16 Students

18 Days

Monday – Thursday, 5 Weeks

108 Hours (12 more hours than required by the state)



One Team. One Mission. One Rock Hill.

Summer Reading Camp R2S 2019

Qualified Faculty and Staff

2 Co-Director Positions

37 Certified Staff Positions - Reading Coaches, Special Education 
Teachers, Interventionists, and Classroom Teachers 

10 Assistant Positions

1 Nurse Position



One Team. One Mission. One Rock Hill.

Summer Reading Camp R2S 2019

A Typical Day

Students Received Reading and Writing Instruction Daily

Readers’, Writers’, & Research Workshop
Music, Media Center, and Word Wizards

Read to Succeed Legislation Requires Progress Monitoring of               
Reading Growth



One Team. One Mission. One Rock Hill.

Summer Reading Camp  R2S 2019
479 3rd Grade Students Invited Initially

Of 479 3rd Grade Students Invited, 376 3rd Grade 
Students Scored Above Not Met 1 on SCREADY -
PROMOTED. 

103 3rd Grade Students Remained as Mandatory 
SRC attendees.

103 Potential Mandatory SRC Attendees

87 3rd Grade Students Received Good Cause 
Exemption- PROMOTED

16 Mandatory SRC Attendees

14 3rd Grade Students Received Good Cause 
Exemption- PROMOTED

1 3rd Grade Student Moved Did Not Attend

1 3rd Grade Student Retained



One Team. One Mission. One Rock Hill.

#1 Focus is Mandatory Attendees

• High Priority Students
• Class Sizes of 6 or Smaller
• Co-Teaching Model with 2 Certified Teachers
• Progress Monitored by Summer Reading Camp Literacy Coaches
• LLI Instruction
• One on One Intervention Based on Specific MAP Data



One Team. One Mission. One Rock Hill.

Mandatory Attendees *1 Student moved and not counted



One Team. One Mission. One Rock Hill.

Summer Reading Camp R2S 2019 Highlights
Based on the SRC monitoring report provided by the State site visitor, our camp classrooms received ratings    
of ALL meets or exceeds. 

Students received 35+ books to take home.

15 Guest Readers came to read to classes at least one time (some came multiple times).

Comporium supported SRC with their reading program, Digger’s Book Club!  With their support and mascot, 
Digger, we held a beginning of camp kickoff and an end of camp celebration. We determined over 6,000 
books were read during SRC!

Meal bags were provided to students/families needing support through local donations from 
Transformation Church.

One RH’s Youth Service League student and eight  WU students participating in class this summer 
volunteered upwards of 200 hours.



 

Memo 
 
TO:  Dr. Bill Cook, Superintendent    

 

FROM: Jennifer Morrison  

  Executive Director of Secondary Education  

 

DATE: August 21, 2019   

 

SUBJECT: Secondary Summer School Report 2019   

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Attached please find slides providing overview information and outcome data for high school summer 

school and middle school summer school programs conducted in Summer 2019. A detailed longitudinal 

report, including 2017 and 2018 data, is also included.  

 

Academics and Accountability 

Phone:  803-981-1055  



One Team. One Mission. One Rock Hill.

Secondary Summer School 
Report 2019 



One Team. One Mission. One Rock Hill.

High School Overview
• Governed by Board Policy IKADD and associated administrative rules

• June 17 – July 3, 2019

• Courses provided in GradPoint in prescriptive mode.   

• Students completed work in labs at each high school.

• Support provided by certified teachers in English, math, science, and social 
studies.  

• Cost was based on grade earned in original course. Students receiving free 
lunch were not charged. Students receiving a reduced lunch rate paid 50 
percent of the course cost. 

• Students passing courses received a course credit and grade of P (no value 
in overall GPA).  



One Team. One Mission. One Rock Hill.

High School Outcomes
• 591 courses were taken.

• 553 courses were completed (93.6% completion rate).

• Average overall course grade was a 77. 

• Most enrolled course was English 3. 

• Course with highest overall passing percentage was English 3.  

• Greatest number of overall enrollments was in science courses (32.4%). 



One Team. One Mission. One Rock Hill.

Middle School Overview
• Governed by Board Administrative Rule IKE-R

• June 10 – June 27, 2019 

• Courses were provided in GradPoint in competency-based mode.  

• Students completed work in classrooms at Dutchman Creek Middle.

• Support was provided by certified teachers in English Language Arts and 
math from each middle school.    

• Students were able to take one course for $100 or two courses for $150. 
Middle school administrators worked with families to ensure no student 
was denied opportunity based on an inability to pay.   

• Students passing courses received a grade of 60. 



One Team. One Mission. One Rock Hill.

Middle School Outcomes
• 263 courses were taken.

• 261 courses were completed (99.2% completion rate).

• Average overall course grade was a 77.2. 

• Most enrolled course was Grade 7 English Language Arts. 

• Course with highest overall passing percentage was Grade 7 Math.  

• Greatest number of overall enrollments was in English (43.1%).* 

*Grade 6 and Grade 7 English Language Arts courses require two 
enrollments per student, Reading and Writing. 



1 
 
 

 

 

2019 Secondary  

Summer School Report 

 

 

 

August 21, 2019  

For more information, please contact  

Jennifer Morrison, Executive Director of Secondary Education  

jlmorrison@rhmail.org | (803) 981-1048  

Dr. William Cook, Superintendent 

  

mailto:jlmorrison@rhmail.org
mailto:jlmorrison@rhmail.org


2 
 

Overview  

This report provides an overview of high school and middle school enrollment and student progress data from the 2019 

summer session. Data from the 2017 and 2018 summer sessions are provided to allow limited comparisons.  

 

High School  

Description 

Rock Hill School District Three implemented a high school summer program focusing content recovery to meet 

graduation requirements, as well as knowledge and skills to matriculate and be academically successful in the 

subsequent school year.  The program was offered in a three-week period between June 17 and July 3, 2019, in school-

based labs at each of the district’s three high schools.  Coursework was facilitated by certified Rock Hill district teachers 

utilizing the GradPoint high school curriculum in prescriptive and sequential modes with students.   

High School Observations, 2017, 2018, and 2019 

Observation  2017 2018 2019 

Total Number of Enrollments  395 572 591 

Percentage Needed to Pass 60% 60% 60% 

Number of Enrollments Completing 
Requirements 

379 (95.9%) 429 (75%)a 553 (93.6%) 

Average Overall Completed Course Grade  76.3% 79% 77% 

Number of Completed Course Enrollments with a 
Grade Below 60%  

11 0 11 

Number of Completed Course Enrollments with a 
Grade NA 

5 143b 27 

Most Enrolled Course 
Math 

Summer 
Biology A (12)c 

English 3 (38)c 

Course with Highest Average Passing Percentage 
Math 

Algebra 2 
(97%)c 

Chemistry 
(85%)c 

aData reflect enrollments in which students completed 10% or more of a course. 
bData may reflect student withdrawal, lack of course closure, or enrollments left in system after correction.    
bData reflect enrollments in which students completed 100% of course.    

 

Number of High School Enrollments by Content Area, 2017, 2018, and 2019 

Content Area 2017 2018 2019 

Elective  13 (3.3%) 14 (5.4%) 18 (3.0%) 

English 108 (27.4%) 67 (25.8%) 168 (28.4%) 

Math 118 (29.9%) 65 (25.0%) 152 (25.7%) 

Science 93 (23.5%) 82 (31.5%) 192 (32.4%) 

Social Studies  63 (15.9%) 32 (12.3%) 61 (10.3%) 

Total  395 (100%) 260 (100%) 591 (100%) 

 

 

 

  



3 
 

Middle School  

Description 

Rock Hill District Three implemented a middle grades summer school program focusing on helping students acquire 

needed knowledge and skills to matriculate and be academically successful in the subsequent school year.  The program 

was offered in a three-week period between June 10 and June 27, 2019, at Dutchman Creek Middle School.  Coursework 

was facilitated by certified Rock Hill district teachers utilizing the GradPoint middle school curriculum in a competency-

based mode with students.   

Middle School Observations, 2017, 2018, and 2019 

Observation  2017 2018 2019 

Total Number of Enrollments 85 183 263 

Percentage Needed to Pass 60% 60% 60% 

Number of Enrollments Completing 100% of 
Course 

64 183 261 

Average Overall Completed Course Grade 73.89% 77% 77.2% 

Number of Completed Course Enrollments 
with a Grade Below 60% 

21 0 0 

Number of Completed Course Enrollments 
with a Grade NA 

0 0 2 

Most Enrolled Course  
ELA 

8th Grade Math 
(28)a 

7th Grade ELA 
(42)a 

Course with Highest Average Passing 
Percentage 

ELA (77.09%) 
6th Grade Math  

(86%)a 
7th Grade Math 

(82%)a 
aData reflect enrollments in which students completed 100% of course.    

 

Number of Middle School Enrollments by Content Area, 2017, 2018, and 2019  

Content Area 2017 2018 2019 

Elective  0 (0.0%) 0 (0.0%) 0 (0.0%) 

Englisha 41 (48.3%)a 86 (47.0%)a 113 (43.1%)a 

Math 15 (17.6%) 47 (25.6%) 70 (26.7%) 

Science 15 (17.6%) 27 (14.8%) 40 (15.3%) 

Social Studies  14 (16.5%) 23 (12.6%)  40 (15.3%) 

Total  85 (100%) 183 (100%)  263 (100%) 
aSixth and seventh English courses enrollments require two enrollments per student, Reading and Writing 

 

 



Memo 
 
TO: Dr. Bill Cook, Superintendent 

 

FROM: Serena H. Williams 

 

CC: Dr. Luanne Kokolis 

 

DATE: August 21, 2019 

 

SUBJECT: “Serving Vulnerable Students” Annual Update 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Our Student Services team works in partnership with agencies and schools to provide stability 

and wrap around support services to vulnerable groups of students in need of support and 

those in crisis.  Family Outreach and Graduation Coach team members worked in partnership 

with more than 100 local, state, and national agencies and organizations to provide wrap 

around support services to students and their families.  Della Barrett, District Family Outreach 

Coordinator and Kiely Blake Graduation Coach at South Pointe High School will share 

highlights of their respective reports to the board.   

Student Services 
803-981-1006   -   803-981-5786 



One Team. One Mission. One Rock Hill.

Community and Student Services Update
Della Barrett, Family Outreach Coordinator

Kiely Blake, Graduation Coach at South Pointe

“Serving Vulnerable Students”



One Team. One Mission. One Rock Hill.

2018-2019 Support Services
• Family Outreach Coordinators managed 

545 student/family support services, 
social histories, attendance intervention 
plans, and crisis assistance referrals.  
More than 130 additional referrals 
received from school staff this year

• Graduation Coaches managed 419
students at risk of dropping out.  Students 
were case managed, provided with 
support services, and assisted with 
enrollment into focused learning 
programs.  

• 139 identified students left before the 
end of the school year.  Graduation 
Coaches have been working to reclaim 
them this Fall

• Training and technical support provided 
to school and department staff to ensure 
compliance with ESSA homeless 
education and foster care mandates

• Provided immediate enrollment 
assistance and support services for 184 
homeless and 191 students placed in 
foster care  

• Completed 157 Best Interest 
Determinations in partnership with DSS.  
57 students remained enrolled in Rock 
Hill Schools as of the first day of 2018-19 
school year.  90 students placed in foster 
care have enrolled.  

• 122 homeless students are currently 
enrolled



One Team. One Mission. One Rock Hill.

Support Services
• Provide immediate enrollment assistance for homeless students and students placed in foster 

care

• Assisting with planning of the #1 Question Is It Good for Children Community Fall Summit:  
“Adverse Childhood Experiences”.   

• Rock Hill Schools will host the United Way Community Mayors Summit later this month

• Assisted with Heart 2 Heart Foundation’s effort to host the annual “Back2School Block Party” 
which was held at the Galleria Mall August 3, 2019.  More than 100 local organizations provided 
health/wellness resources, backpacks, and school supplies to 2,500 students in attendance

• My Brothers Keeper hosted the 2nd annual “Scholastic Bowl” this summer.  The goal of the bowl 
was to inspire Rock Hill Schools minority middle and high school students to compete in an 
academic bowl.  50 students participated in the inaugural event at the North Central Family 
Medical Center.  

• We are working to re launch mentoring programming by expanding reading buddies, tutors, 
mentors, and forming “Lunch Buddy Programs” in partnership with the #1 Question, faith 
community, civic groups



One Team. One Mission. One Rock Hill.

Nutrition Enhancements
• Served 760 students

• Transitioned from snack based model to meal based model 

• Changes made last school year as a result of program surveys that indicated that snack 
products contained too much sugar and dense calories

• Surveys also indicated that 40% of program participants finished packs in one day that 
was intended to last for the entire weekend

• Sought nutrition recommendations from Second Harvest Food Bank of the Metrolina
and established a new partnership

• Celebrated the 10th Anniversary of the Program 

• High School students are now served

• Program sponsored by the Rock Hill Schools Education Foundation 



One Team. One Mission. One Rock Hill.

Barriers to Learning
Transient Living due to Homelessness

• York County Rental Statistic: 
Fair Market Rent for 2 Bedrooms $967

• Average Renter Wage in York County $11.91/hour
• Wage required to afford 2 bedrooms $18.60/hour
• At minimum wage, a person would have to work 103 hours per 

week to afford 2 bedrooms
• 47% or 12,369 York County households are cost burdened by 

housing (paying over 30% of their income towards housing)
• Local shelters have limited capacity, and guidelines that 

sometimes prohibit families from staying together at shelters                  
(ex. boys ages 14 & up)

• Department continuously challenged with keeping students 
enrolled in school of origin, providing out of zone 
transportation options, and finding placements for 
unaccompanied youth

• 122 students currently identified as homeless

Source: Habitat for Humanity of York County



One Team. One Mission. One Rock Hill.

Foster Care
• ESSA legislation mandates school stability based on best interest 

decisions made between Department of Social Services, school 
districts, and caregivers

• York County has 90 licensed residential foster homes making the 
county one of the largest areas with available placements in 
South Carolina.  The average placement has 3 children

• York County School Districts work together to maintain school 
stability if it is safe and feasible to keep students enrolled in 
their school of origin

• 77 students placed in foster care are currently enrolled from 
residential homes in Rock Hill Schools attendance zones 

• YC Foster Parents Assn. and Fostering the Family, a local 
nonprofit is currently encouraging local ministries to encourage 
fostering.  We have a new partnership relationship with these 
organizations.



One Team. One Mission. One Rock Hill.

Graduation Coaches
A High School Graduation Coach is someone who is engaged in high school 
graduation assistance activities, including but not limited to working with students, 
school faculty and staff, parents, and guardians. The High School Graduation Coach 
will provide assistance to all high school students, individually and in groups, 
regarding high school graduation and completion, including but not limited to 
analyzing data to identify students or subgroups with potential high school 
graduation problems; planning, implementing, and tracking individual high school 
graduation plans; identifying and resolving barriers to graduation; and facilitating 
career choices and planning. 

Graduation Coaches work with students, families, and support systems to remove 
barriers to graduation including:

Case Management
Homelessness
Substance abuse
Mental Health issues
Lack of parental support
Unhealthy relationships
Incarceration 

Pregnancy
Daycare issues
Hopelessness
Challenges in student’s living environment
Poor attendance & academic performance 
Employment



One Team. One Mission. One Rock Hill.

Community Resource Guide
• The goal of the guide is to provide the 

Rock Hill school community with a 
comprehensive list of resources in Rock 
Hill and York County

• Service providers listed in the Community 
Resource Guide are categorized into 16 
areas including Basic Needs, Child 
Assistance, Community Coalitions/Task 
Forces, Cultural Services, Educational 
Resources, Elderly Resources, Financial, 
Health Care Services, Housing and Shelter 
Resources, Language Services, Legal Aid, 
Life Skills/Job Training, Recreational 
Services, Support Groups, Thrift and 
Consignment Stores, and Transportation 
Services.

• Guide is available for download on our 
website



One Team. One Mission. One Rock Hill.

Questions & Answers
Dr. Keith Wilks,

Executive Director of Student Services

Nina Cullinan, 

Administrative Assistant

803-981-1041 or ncullinan@rhmail.org

Serena Williams

Coordinator of Community Services

Homeless Education & Foster Care Liaison 

981-1006 or serenaw@rhmail.org



 

At its work session on July 22,  2019, held at the Central Office, the Board: 

 

• reviewed the RHS’ Mission / Vision;  

 

• received an update on Goals for 2018-2019 

 

• heard a presentation of the Final Draft of Master Plan 2020-2030; and,  

 

• discussed a resolution ordering a bond referendum. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

At its work session on August 12,  2019, held at the Central Office, the Board: 

 

• held an executive session for Personnel Matters (Hirings) and Contractual 

Matters (Intergovernmental Agreement, Contract Negotiations);  

 

• recognized York Electric, Batson-Cook Construction and Rock Hill 

Symphony;  

 

• reviewed Admin. Rule JFAA-R – Admission of Resident Students; 

 

• reviewed Policies GBED – Tobacco Free Workplace and JICG – Tobacco Use 

by Students;  

 

• reviewed Admin. Rule IKA-R – Grading and Assessment Systems;  

 

• reviewed (17) Section “C” Policies; 

 

• discussed 8% SCAGO General Obligation Debt Issuance; 

 

• received information on e-Learning days; 

 

• received a mental health services update; 

 

• discussed other and future business; and,  

 

• and held an executive session for Succession Planning of Master Plan 

2020-2030.  

 

 

 

 

 

 



Other and Future Business   Helena Miller 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 



Executive  Session  

• Contractual Matters 
➢ Intergovernmental Agreement 
➢  Succession Planning for Mater Plan 2020-2030 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Action as Required from Executive Session  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Adjournment  


	0 Agenda 8 26 19
	1. Student to Do Call to Order 8.26.19
	2. Recognitions 8.26.2019
	4. a. 1. MINUTES COMBINED Work Session, Business Meeting 7 22 19
	4. b. Personnel Report
	5. a-b. GBED, JICG Tobacco Policies
	5. c. 1. Board memo C policies
	5. c. 2. C Policy Chart
	5. c. 3. C policies first read (003)
	5. d. 1. Memo SCAGO 8% Resolution
	5. d. 2. York CSD No. 3 (004)
	5. d. 3. Doc#_33977323_v_1_York 3 SD - Resolution for Fall 2019 SCAGO GO Program
	7. a. Announcements 8.26.19
	7. b. Memo Symphony Presentation
	7. c. Memo nursing
	7. d. 1. Board Presentation Memo-August 20 2019
	7. d. 2. Board Presentation for SRC 2019
	7. d. 3. Board Memo - Secondary Summer School Report 2019
	7. d. 4. Slides - Secondary Summer School Report 2019
	7. d. 5. Secondary Summer School Report 2019
	7. e. 1. Student Services Update 8.26.19
	7. e. 2. Community  Student Services Update 8-2019
	8. a. Review of July 22, 2019 Work Session
	8. b. Review of August 12 2019 Work Session
	9. Other and Future Business
	10-12. Executive Session, Adjournment

